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)
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ANSWER OF WOOTON CONSTRUCTION, LTD.

NOW COMEStheRespondent,WootonConstruction,Ltd. (“Wooton”), andanswersthe

State’scomplaintasfollows:

I. VIOLATIONS BY SMITHFIELD AND WOOTON

COUNT I

FAILURE TO PERFORM SITE EVALUATION AND CLASSIFICATION

1. This Complaint is brought on behalfof the Peopleof the State of Illinois, by
• LISA MADIGAN, Attorney Generalof the State of Illinois, on her own motion, and at the

requestof the Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency(“Illinois EPA”) pursuantto the terms
and provisionsof Section31 of the Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (“Act”), 415 ILCS
5/31 (2002).

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required.

2. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Smithfield Properties, L.L.C.
(“Smithfield”) wasandis an Illinois limited liability company.

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph apply to a respondentother than
Wooton. Wooton lacks sufficient knowledgeto either admit or denythis paragraph.



3.. At all times relevantto this Complaint,WootonConstruction,Ltd. (“Wooton”)
wasandis an Illinois corporation.

ANSWER: Admit.

4. At all times relevantto this Complaint, the piece of land wherethe alleged
violations occurredis locatedat 222 SouthRacineAvenue,Chicago,Illinois (“Site”). The Site
usedto be an industrial areawhich hasnow beendevelopedinto 42 town home units. For a
numberof yearsthe ChicagoSun-Times,Inc., a Delawarecorporation,(“Sun-Times”) usedthe

• Siteasa homefor its Daily Newsfleetmaintenancegarage.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the property is located at 222 S. Racine Avenue,
Chicago, Illinois. Wooton deniesthat anyviolations of the Act occurred at the Site.

5. Historically, the Site hashad severalpetroleum undergroundstoragetanks
(“UST5”). Someof theUSTs wereinstalledasfar backasthe 1950’s. SomeoftheUSTs have
beenremovedandsomestill remainabandonedin placeattheSite.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that USTs were located at the Site. Wooton admits that
someof the USTs have been removed from the Site or abandonedin place. Wooton lacks
sufficient knowledge to admit or deny the time period during which all the tanks were
installed at theSite.

6. From Sometimeprior to 1917until it sold the propertyto Smithfield in October
1999,the Sun-Timeswasthe ownerof the Siteandall of theUSTs which were installedat the

• Site.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Sun-Times was a prior owner of the Site. Wooton
lacks sufficient knowledgeto either admit or deny the remaining allegationssetforth in this

• paragraph.

7. On August2, 1991,the Illinois StateFire Marshal receivedfrom the Sun-Times
a Notification for Underground Storage Tanks which notified the State Fire Marshal that the
Sun-Timeswasthe ownerandoperatorofeight (8) USTsat the Site.

ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledge to either admit or deny the allegations
setforth in this paragraph.

8. The Sun-Timesusedthe USTs to store fuel for its fleet maintenancegarage

locatedat theSite.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Sun-Timesstored fuel at the Site.

9. On April 23, 1999, the Sun-Times,after informing the Office of the StateFire
Marshal (“OSFM”), removedone active 10,000gallon unleadedgasolineUST from the Site.
During removal,the Sun-Timesdiscoveredthat a releaseofpetroleumproductshad occurredin
thevicinity of the 10,000gallon unleadedgasolineUST at someundeterminedtime. The Sun-
Timesreportedthereleaseincidentto the Illinois EPA which catalogedit asLUST IncidentNo.
99103. Sun-Timesthen performedremediationof the soil contaminatedwith gasolineat the
vicinity wherethe 10,000gallon unleadedgasolinetankwasremoved.
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ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledge to either admit or deny the allegationsset
forth in this paragraph.

10. On October26, 1999,theIllinois EPA issuedaNo FurtherRemediationletterto
the Sun-Times for LUST Incident No. 991013 based upon the 45 day/CorrectiveAction
CompletionReportsubmittedto theIllinois EPAby Sun-Times.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Illinois EPA issued a No Further Remediation
Letter for Incident No. 991013.

11. RespondentSun-Timesdid notperforma groundwaterinvestigationto determine
the extent of groundwatercontaminationat the time it removedthe 10,000 gallon unleaded
gasolineUST.

ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledge to either admit or deny the allegationsset
forth in this paragraph.

12. On December3, 1998, the Sun-Timesenteredinto an agreementto sell the
propertyto KenardInvestments,Inc. (“Kenard”) and on October27, 1999, Kenardassignedits
interestto Smithfield. On June6, 2002, almostfour yearsafterthesale,Sun-Timesinformedthe
OSFMthatit hadsoldthepropertyto Kenard.

ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledgeto either admit or deny the allegationsset
forth in this paragraph.

13. Prior to thesaleoftheSite, Sun-Timesdid not remediatethesoil attheSite,with
the exceptionof the small areaimpactedwith gasolineunderLUST IncidentNo. 991013.Sun-
Times left in-placesoil contaminatedwith eithergasolineand/ordieselfuel from either leaking
USTs and/orsurfacespills whenSun-Timeswas using the Sitefor a numberof yearsasa fleet
vehiclemaintenanceandrefuelingfacility.

ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledge to either admit or deny whether the Sun-
Times conducted remediation at the Site in addition to that in responseto Incident No.
991013. Wooton admits that any contamination found at the Site was not caused or
allowed by Wooton.

14. At anunspecifieddate,SmithfieldandWootonbeganconstructingatown house
complexon the Sitepurchasedfrom Sun-Times.Severalofthetown houseswereconstructedon
top of thecontaminatedsoil.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that it contracted with Smithfield for the construction of
town houses at the Site. Wooton denies the remaining allegations contained in this
paragraph.

15. In November1999, Wooton removedan active 10,000gallon dieselUST from
thesite. WootonremovedtheUST withoutpermissionfrom theOSFMor apermit from theCity
ofChicagoDepartmentoftheEnvironment.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that in November 1999Wooton contracted for the removal
of a 10,000-gallonUST from the Site. Wooton denies any remaining allegationscontained
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in this paragraph.

16. In the Spring of 2001, while RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton were
conductingconstructionrelatedactivities at the Site, an on-site drinking watermain ruptured.
Shortly afterthe ruptureof thedrinkingwatermain, a residentofthenewtown homesat theSite
reportedapetroleumtastein hisdrinkingwater.

ANSWER: Admit.

17. When consultantshired by Wooton were investigating the petroleumtasting
water complaint, they discoveredthat the soil in the areawherethe watermain rupturedwas
contaminatedwith dieselfuel.

ANSWER: Admit.

18. Upon information and belief, Complainantallegesthat the source of the soil
contaminationin the areawhere the water main rupturedwas from one or more of the USTs
ownedandoperatedby Sun-Timesandlorsurfacespills ofpetroleumproductsoveranumberof
yearswhenSun-TimesusedtheSiteasafleet vehiclemaintenanceand refuelingfacility.

ANSWER: Wooton lacks sufficient knowledge to either admit or deny the allegations
setforth in the paragraph. Wooton denies that it causedor allowed any contamination at
the Site.

19. In April 2001, Wooton retained an engineering firm to conduct subsurface
investigation and remediationactivities.

ANSWER: Admit. • • •

20. On May 24, 2001, the engineeringfirm retainedby Wootonsubmittedto the
Illinois EPA LUST Sectionits remedialaction completionreport.Theremediationconsistedof
removing425 tons ofdieselcontaminatedsoil to a depthof 3 to 4 feetandbackfilling the area
with cleanclay soil. Contaminatedsoil wasremovedfrom areasin the opencourtyardin front of
town homeunitsnumbers23 through42.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that Wooton’s consultant submitted a remedial action
completion report to the Illinois EPA. Wooton further admits that the report describedthe
removal ofsoil containing constituents indicative of dieselfuel.

21. On July 27, 2001,theIllinois EPArejectedtheremedialactioncompletionreport
becausecontaminationstill remainsat thesite. Sincegroundwaterwasencounteredat the Site,a
full groundwater investigation should have been conducted to determine the extent of
groundwatercontamination.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Illinois EPA rejectedthe remedial action completion
report. Wooton deniesthe remaining allegationssetforth in this paragraph.

22. On January28, 2002, the Illinois EPA receiveda groundwaterclassificationstudy
andTier 2 evaluationsubmittedby Smithfield. On March 20, 2002,theIllinois EPA rejectedthe
studybecausegroundwatercontaminantanalysiswasnot conducted.
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ANSWER: Wooton admits that Smithfield IV submitted a groundwater classification
study and Tier 2 evaluation to the Illinois EPA. Wooton further admits that the Illinois
EPA rejected the study. Wooton denies the remaining allegations set forth in this
paragraph.

23. Section 57.6(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a) (2002), titled, Underground
storagetanks:earlyaction, providesas follows:

(a) Ownersandoperatorsof underground storagetanksshall, in responseto
all confirmed releases, comply with all applicable statutory and
regulatoryreportingandresponserequirements.

ANSWER: Wootonadmits that the Statehas accurately quoted a portion of theBoard’s
regulations.

24. • Section 732.103 of the Illinois Pollution Control Board (“Board”) Waste
DisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code, 732.103 titled, Definitions, providesthe following
pertinentdefinitions:

“CORRECTIVEACTION” meansactivities associatedwith compliancewith the
provisionsofSections57.6 and57.7 oftheAct. (Section57.2 of theAct.)

“RESIDENTIAL UNIT” meansastructureusedprimarily for dwelling purposes
including multi-unit dwellings such as apartmentbuildings, condominiums,
cooperativesordormitories.

“SITE” meansany single location, place, tract of land or parcel of property
including contiguousproperty not separatedby a public right-of-way. (Section
3.61 oftheAct)

“UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK” or “UST” means any one or
combinationof tanks(including undergroundpipesconnectedthereto)which is
usedto contain an accumulationof regulatedsubstances,and the volume of
which (including the volume ofundergroundpipesconnectedthereto)is 10 per
centumor more beneaththe surfaceof the ground. Such term doesnot include
any ofthefollowing or any pipesconnectedthereto.

“UST SYSTEM” or “tank system” means an underground storage tank,
connected underground piping, underground ancillary equipment, and
containmentsystem,if any.

“OCCURRENCE” means any release from an underground storage tank,
including any additional releasefrom that undergroundstoragetank at the site
identified in the courseof performingcorrectiveactionin responseto the initial
release.(Section57.2 oftheAct)

“OSFM” meanstheOffice oftheStateFireMarshal.

“OPERATOR” meansanypersonin control of, orhaving responsibilityfor, the
daily operationoftheundergroundstoragetank.(42 U.S.C.Section6991)
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“OWNER” in the caseof an undergroundstoragetankin useon November8,
1984, or brought into useafterthat date,anypersonwho owns an underground

• storagetankusedfor thestorage,useor dispensingof regulatedsubstances;

“PERSON” means,for the purposesof interpretingthe definitions of the ternis
“owner” or “operator,” an individual, trust, firm, joint stock company,joint
venture, consortium, commercial entity, corporation (including a government
corporation),partnership,association,state,municipality, commission,political
subdivisionof a state,or any interstatebody and shall include theUnited States
Governmentand eachdepartment,agency,and instrumentalityof the United
States.(Derivedfrom 42 U.S.C. Section6991)

“PETROLEUM” meanspetroleum,including crude oil or any fraction thereof
which is liquid at standardconditionsoftemperatureandpressure(60F and14.7
poundspersquareinch absolute).. (Derivedfrom 42 U.S.C. Section6991)

“PHYSICAL SOIL CLASSIFICATION” means verification of geological
conditions consistentwith regulations for identif~’ingand protectingpotable
resourcegroundwateror verification that subsurfacestrata are as generally
mappedin the publication Illinois Geological SurveyCircular (1984) entitled
“Potential for Contaminationof ShallowAquifers in Illinois,” by Berg, Richard
C., et al. Such classificationmay include review of soil borings, well logs,

• physical soil analysis,regional geologicmaps,or other scientific publications
(Section57.2 oftheAct).

“RELEASE” means any spilling, leaking, emitting, discharging, escaping,
leaching, or disposing of petroleum from an undergroundstoragetank into
groundwater,surfacewateror subsurfacesoils. (Section57.2 oftheAct)

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoted a portion of the Board’s
regulations.

25. Pursuantto the definition of 35 Ill. Adm. Code732.103,Respondentsareowners
ofthe USTs at the SitebecausetheUSTswere in useonNovember8, 1984, or brought into use
afterthat date.

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required.

26. The USTs at the Site and their associatedundergroundequipmentare UST
systemsasthat termis definedby 35 Iii. Adm. Code731.103.

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required.

27. Therewas a releaseof petroleumproductson the Site on or beforeNovember
1999,astheterm“release”is definedby 35 Ill. Adm. Code722.103.

ANSWER: The allegationsset forth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required.
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28. Section732.300(a)ofthe BoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.300(a),titled, General,providesasfollows:

(a) Exceptasprovidedin subsection(b) below, theowneroroperatorof any
site subjectto this Part shallevaluateand classifythe site in accordance
with therequirementsof this SubpartC. All suchsitesshallbe classified
as “No Further Action,” “Low Priority” or “High Priority”. Site
classifications shall be basedon the results of the site evaluation,

• including, but not limited to, the physical soil classification and the
groundwaterinvestigation,if applicable.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoteda portion of theBoard’s
regulations.

29. Section732.307(a)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.307(a),titled, Site EvaluatjQji, providesasfollows:

(a) Except asprovidedin Section732.200(b),the owneror operatorof any
site for which a releaseof petroleumhasbeenconfirmedin accordance
with regulationspromulgatedby the OSFM and reportedto IEMA shall
arrangefor site evaluation and classification in accordancewith the
requirementsof this Section. A Licensed ProfessionalEngineer (or,
where appropriate,personsworking under the direction of a Licensed
ProfessionalEngineer)shall conductthe site evaluation.The resultsof
the site evaluation shall provide the basis for determining the site
evaluation.The resultsof the site evaluationshall provide the basisfor
determiningthesiteclassification.Thesiteclassificationshallbe certified
asrequiredby thesupervisingLicensedProfessionalEngineer.

ANSWER: Wooton denies that the State has accurately quoted this section of the
Board’s regulations.

30. Section732.100(c)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,titled,Aovlicabilitv,
providesasfollows:

* * *

(c) Owners or operatorssubjectto this Part by law or by election shall
proceedexpeditiouslyto comply with all requirementsof theAct and the
regulationsandto obtainthe “No FurtherRemediation”letter signifying
final dispositionof thesitefor purposesofthis Part.TheAgencymayuse
its authority pursuantto the Act and Section 732.105 of this Part to
expediteinvestigative,preventiveor corrective action by an owner or

• operatoror to initiatesuchaction.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoted a portion of theBoard’s
regulations.

31. Respondents,Smithfield and Wooton as owners and/or operators of the Site
where a releaseof petroleum products occurred did not perform a site evaluation and
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classification in accordancewith the requirementsof 35 Ill. Adm. Code 732.300(a) and
732.307(a).

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required. To the extent that this paragraph containsany factual allegations,
theyare denied.

32. By failing to performsiteevaluationandclassificationin accordancewith 35 Ill.
Adm. Code 732.300(a)and 732.307(a),RespondentsSmithfield and Wootonviolated Section
732.100(c)oftheBoard WasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code732.100(c)and,thereby
violatedSection57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.

COUNT II

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REPORTING
AND RESPONSEREQUIREMENTS

1-27. Complainantreallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthis CountII.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I as its
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Count II.

28. Section 732.200of the Board WasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.200,titled, Generalprovidesasfollows:

Owners and operatorsof undergroundstoragetanks shall, in responseto all
confirmed releasesof petroleum, comply with all applicable statutory and
regulatoryreportingand responserequirements.(Section57.6(a)of the Act) No
workplanshallbe requiredfor conductingearlyactionactivities.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehasaccurately quoted a portion of the Board’s
regulations.

29. RespondentsSmithfield and Wootonfailed to report the confirmedreleaseof
petroleumproductsat theSite in accordancewith therequirementof 35 Ill. Adm. Code732.200.

ANSWER: Denied.

30. By failing to report the confirmed releaseof petroleumproducts at the Site,
RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton violated Section 732.200of the Board Waste Disposal
Regulations,therebyviolating Section57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.
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COUNT III

FAILURE TO PERFORM INITIAL RESPONSEACTIONS

1-27. Complainantreallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 of thisCountIII.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I asits
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Count III.

28. Section732.203(a)of theBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(a),titled, Early Action, providesasfollows:

a) Upon confirmation of a releaseof petroleumfrom a UST systemin
accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby the OSFM, the owneror
operator,or both, shall perform the following initial responseactions
within 24 hoursaftertherelease:

1) Reportthereleaseto IEMA (e.g.,by telephoneorelectronicmail)

2) Take immediateaction to prevent any further releaseof the
regulatedsubstanceto the
environment;and

3) Identify andmitigatefire, explosionandvaporhazards.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoted a portion of theBoard’s
regulations.

29. RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton did not perform initial responseactions
within 24 hoursafterconfirmationof thereleaseofpetroleumfrom theSiteasrequiredby 35 Ill.
Adm. Code732.203(a).

ANSWER: Denied.

30. By failing to performinitial responseactionswithin 24 hoursaftertheconfirmed
releaseof petroleum,RespondentsSmithfield and WootonviolatedSection732.202 (a) of the
Board WasteDisposal Regulations,thereby violating Section 57.6(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS
5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.

COUNT IV

FAILURE TO PERFORM INITIAL ABATEMENT MEASURES

1-27. Complainant realleges and incorporatesby referenceherein, paragraphs1
through27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthis CountIV.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I as its
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Count IV.
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28. Section732.202(b)of theBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(b),titled, Early Actioii, providesasfollows:

(b) Upon confirmation of a releaseof petroleumfrom a UST systemin
accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby the OSFM, the owneror
operatorshallperformthefollowing initial abatementmeasures:

1) Removeas muchof the petroleumfrom the UST systemas is
necessaryto preventfurtherreleaseinto theenvironment;

2) visually inspect any above ground releasesor exposedbelow
ground releasesand preventfurther migration of the released
substanceintosurroundingsoils andgroundwater;

3) Continue to monitor and mitigate any additional fire and safety
hazardsposedby vaporsor freeproductthat havemigratedfrom
the UST excavationzone and enteredinto subsurfacestructures
(suchassewersorbasements);

4) Remedyhazardsposedby contaminatedsoils that are excavated
• or exposedasa resultof releaseconfirmation,site investigation,

abatementor correctiveactionactivities. If theseremediesinclude
treatmentor disposalof soils, theowneroroperatorshallcomply
with 35 Ill. Adm. Code722, 724, 725, and807 through815;

5) Measurefor the presenceof a releasewhere contaminationis
mostlikely to bepresentat theUST site,unlessthepresenceand
source of the releasehave been confirmed in accordancewith
regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM. In selectingsampletypes,
sample locations, and measurementmethods, the owner or
operatorshallconsiderthenatureof the storedsubstance,the type
of backfill, depthto groundwaterandother factorsasappropriate

• for identifying thepresenceandsourceoftherelease;and

6) Investigateto determinethepossiblepresenceoffreeproduct,and
begin free product removal as soon as practicable and in
accordancewith Section732.203below.

ANSWER: Wooton denies that the State has accurately quoted this section of theBoard’s
regulations.

29. RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton did not adequately perform initial
abatementmeasuresafterconfirmationofthereleaseofpetroleumproducts.

ANSWER: Denied.
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30. By failing to adequatelyperforminitial abatementmeasuresafterconfirmationof
release,RespondentsSmithfieldandWootenviolated35 Ill. Adm. Code 732.202(b)andthereby
violatedSection57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.

COUNT V

FAILURE TO ASSEMBLE INFORMATION ABOUT THE SITE

1-27. Complainantreallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1
through27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 of this CountV.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporatesits answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I asits
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 ofthis Count V.

28. Section732.202(d)ofthe Board WasteDisposalRegulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(d),titled,Early Acik~ii,provides as follows:

d) Owners or operatorsshall assembleinformation aboutthe site and the
natureof therelease,including informationgainedwhile confirming the
releaseor completingthe. initial abatementmeasuresin subsections(a)
and (b) above.This informationmustinclude, but is not limited to, the
following:

1) Dataon thenatureandestimatedquantityofrelease;

2) Data from availablesourcesor site investigationsconcerningthe
following factories:surroundingpopulations,water quality, use
and approximatelocations of wells potentially affectedby the
release,subsurfacesoil conditions,locationsofsubsurfacesewers,

• climatologicalconditionsandlanduse;

3) Results of the site check requiredat subsection(b) (5) of this
Section;

4) Resultsof the free productinvestigationsrequiredat subsection
• . (b) (6) of this Section, to be used by owners or operatorsto

determinewhetherfree productmustbe recoveredunderSection
732.203.

ANSWER: Wooton deniesthat the Statehas accurately quotedthis section of theBoard’s
regulations.

29. RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton as owners and/or operatorsof the Site
where a releaseoccurreddid not assembleinformation about the Site and the nature of the
releaseafterconfirmationof therelease.

ANSWER: Denied.
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30. By failing to assembleinformationaboutthe Site andthe natureof the release
after confirmationof the release,RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton violated 35 Ill. Adm.
Code732.202(d),therebyviolating Section57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.

COUNT VI

FAILURE TO SUBMIT PHYSICAL SOIL
CLASSIFICATION AND GROUNDWATER

INVESTIGATION PLAN

1-27. Complainantreallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein, paragraphsI
through27 of CountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthisCountVI.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I as its
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27of this Count VI.

28. Section 57.7(a) (1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/57.7(a) (1) (2002), titled, Leaking
UndergroundStorageTanks; Site Investigation,andCorrectiveAction, providesasfollows:

(a) Site Investigation.

(1) For anysite investigationactivitiesrequiredby statuteorrule, the
owneror operatorshall submit to the Agency for approvala site
investigationplandesignedto determinethenature,concentration,
direction of movement, rate of movement,and extent of the
contaminationaswell asthe significantphysical featuresof the
site and surroundingareathat may affect contaminanttransport
andrisk to humanhealthandsafetyandtheenvironment.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accuratelyquoted this sectionof theAct.

29. RespondentsSmithfieldandWooton,asownersandoperatorsof the Sitewherea
releaseof petroleumproductsoccurred,failed to submitto the Illinois EPA a site investigation
plan in accordancewith therequirementsof Section57.7(A)(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/57.7(a)
(1) (2002).

ANSWER: Denied.

30. By failing to submitto the Illinois EPA a site investigationplanin accordance
with the requirementsof Section 57.7(a) (1), RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton violated
Section57.7(a)(1) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.7(a)(1) (2002).

ANSWER: Denied.
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COUNT VII

CAUSING OR TENDING TO CAUSE WATER POLLUTION

1-22. Plaintiff reallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
22 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through22 of this CountVII.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 22 of Count I as its
answersto paragraphs 1 through 22 ofthis Count VII.

23. Section12(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCSS/12(a) (2002)providesasfollows:

No personshall:

a. Causeor threatenor allow the dischargeof a contaminantinto the
environm~ntin any Statesoasto causeortendto causewaterpollutionin
Illinois, eitheraloneor in combinationwith matterfrom othersources,or
soasto violateregulationsor standardsadoptedby thePollution Control
Boardunderthis Act.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoted Section12(a)of theAct.

24. Section3.3 15 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002),definespersonasfollows:

“PERSON” is anyindividual, partnership,co-partnership,firm, company,limited
liabiilty company,corporation,association,joint stock company,trust, estate,
political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or their legal
representative,agentor assigns.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the State has accurately quoted this section of the
Board’s regulations.

25. RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonareeacha“person”asthattermis definedin

Section3.3 15 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002).

ANSWER: Admit.

26. Section3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165(2002),definescontaminantas“any
solid, liquid orgaseousmatter,anyodor,orany form ofenergy,from whateversource.”

ANSWER: Admit.

27. Dieselor gasolinefuel which wasreleasedfrom one or more USTs in watersof
the State is a contamiimt(sic) as that term is definedby Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS
5/3.165(2002).

ANSWER: Wooton admits that dieselfuel and gasolineare “contaminants” asthat term
is defined in Section 3.165 of the Act. Smithfield IV denies the remaining allegations
contained in this paragraph.

28. Section3.545 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 53.545(2002),defineswaterpollution:
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“WATER POLLUTION” is suchalterationof the physical,thermal, chemical,
biological or radioactivepropertiesof anywatersof the State,or suchdischarge
of any contaminationinto any watersofthe State,aswill or is likely to createa
nuisanceor render suchwaters harmful or detrimentalor injurious to public
health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial agricultural,
recreational,or otherlegitimateuses,or to livestock,wild animals,birds, fish or
otheraquaticlife.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that theStatehas accurately quotedSection3.545of the Act.

29. Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002),defines“Waters of the State”
asfollows:

“WATERS” meansall accumulationsofwater,surfaceandunderground,natural
and artificial, public andprivate, or parts thereof,which arewholly or partially
within, flow through,or borderuponthis State.

ANSWER: Wooton admits that the Statehas accurately quoted Section3.550of the Act.

30. The undergroundwaterat the Site which was contaminatedby the releaseof
dieseland/orgasolinefuel from oneormoreof theUSTsand/orsurfacespills is awaterofthe
Stateastheterm“water” is definedby Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002);(sic)

ANSWER: The allegationssetforth in this paragraph contain legal conclusionsto which
no responseis required. To the extent that this paragraph containsany factual allegations,
they are denied.

31. From sometime prior to November 1999, until the date of filing of this
Complaint,the groundwaterat the site remainscontaminatedwith dieseland/or gasolinefuel
releasedfrom one or moreUSTs and/orfrom surfacespill of petroleumproductsduring Sun-
Time’s longusageofthe Siteasagarageandrefuelngstationfor its fleetvehicles.

ANSWER: Denied.

32. RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton took no action to remediate the
groundwatercontaminationattheSite; (sic)

ANSWER: Denied.

33. RespondentsSmithfield and Wootonby their actionsand/or inactionscaused,
threatened,orallowedthe dischargeof contaminants,into theenvironmentsoasto causeor tend
to causewaterpollution in Illinois.

ANSWER: Denied.
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COUNT VIII

FAILURE TO SUBMIT A 45-DAY REPORT

1-27. Complainant reallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein, paragraphs1
through27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthis CountVIII.

ANSWER: Wooton incorporates its answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of Count I asits
answersto paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Count VIII.

28. Section732.202(e)ofthe BoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(e)titled, Early Action, provides asfollows:

(e) Within 45 daysafter confirmationof a releaseof petroleumfrom a UST
systemin accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM, owners
or operatorsshall submit to the Agency the information collected in
compliancewith subsection(d) above in a mannerthat demonstratesits
applicability andtechnicaladequacy.Theinformationshallbe submitted
on forms prescribedby the Agency or in a similar format containingthe
sameinformation.

• ANSWER: Wooton denies the State has accurately quoted this portion of the Board’s
regulations.

29. In November1999, when Smithfield and Wooton removedthe active 10,000
gallon dieselUST fromthe Site,theyweretheownersand/oroperatorsoftheUST.

ANSWER: The allegations set forth in this paragraph contain legal conclusions to
which no responseis required. To the extent that this paragraph contains any factual
allegations,theyare denied.

30. RespondentsSmithfield and Wooton as owners and/or operatorsof the UST
systemand/or Site wherethe releaseof petroleumproductsoccurred,did not submita report
summarizing information about the Site and nature of the releasewithin 45 days after
confirmationoftherelease.

ANSWER: The allegations set forth in this paragraph contain legal conclusions to
which no responseis required. To the extent that this paragraph contains any factual
allegations,they are denied.

31. By failing to submita reportsummarizinginformationaboutthe Siteandnature
of the releasewithin 45 daysafter confirmationof the release,RespondentsSmithfield and
Wootonviolated35 Ill. Adm. Code732.202(e)andthereby,also violatedSection57.6(a)of the
Act, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Denied.
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II. VIOLATIONS BY CHICAGO SUN-TIMES

COUNT IX-COUNT XI

ANSWER: The allegations set forth in Counts IX through Count XI pertain to a
Respondentother than Wooton. Accordingly, no answer is required.

WHEREFORE Wooton requeststhat the Board enteran order dismissingthe State’s

complaintand awardingWootonits costsandfeesincurredin this matter.

Respectfullysubmitted,

It(evinB. Hynes
t\~’KEEFE,LYONS & HYNES,LLC
3l~N.LaSalleStreet,Suite4100
Chicago,Illinois 60602
(312)621-0400

ATTORNEYSFORWOOTON
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Kevin B. Hynes, an attorney, certify that on September28, 2004, I causedthe

foregoingNotice ofFiling, Appearance,andAnswerto be servedby First Class,postageprepaid,

U.S. Mail on thefollowing:

ZemeheretBereket-Ab
AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. RandolphSt.,

20
th Floor

Chicago,Illinois 60601

JanineM. Landau-Esser
Michael S. Mostow
Quarles& Brady
500 W. MadisonStreet
Suite 3700
Chicago,Illinois 60661

BradleyHalloran
HearingOfficer
Illinois Pollution ControlBoard
100 W. RandolphSt., 11-500
Chicago,Illinois 60601

/

Kevin B. Hy~




